## Select Board Meeting Monday September 27, 2021 7 PM Nowak Room, Town Offices Final Minutes

Members present: Julie Gilman, Lovey Roundtree Oliff, Daryl Browne, Niko Papakonstantis, and Town Manager Russ Dean were present at this meeting.

Members absent: Molly Cowan

1. Call Meeting to Order

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Papakonstantis at 7 PM.

- 2. Public Comment
  - a. There was no public comment at this meeting.
- 3. Proclamations/Recognitions
  - a. Purple Heart Day
    - Ms. Gilman read the proclamation:

Whereas, the people of the Town of Exeter have great admiration and the utmost gratitude for all citizens of our community who have unselfishly served in the Armed Forces, which has been vital in maintaining the freedom and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and

Whereas, citizens of our community have been wounded in action or killed in action while serving in the Armed Forces, and have been posthumously awarded the Purple Heart for their ultimate sacrifices; and

Whereas, the Purple Heart is the oldest American military decoration and was created as The Badge of Military Merit made of purple cloth in the shape of a heart with the word "Merit" sewn upon it, on August 7, 1782 in Newburgh, New York by General George Washington; and,

Whereas, the heritage it represents is sacred to those who know the price paid to wear the Purple Heart; and

Whereas, August 7th is nationally recognized as Purple Heart Day,

Now Therefore, we the Select Board of the Town of Exeter, NH will recognize August 7th, annually, as Purple Heart Day and encourage citizens and organizations of Exeter to display the American flag, as well as other public expressions of recognition of our Purple Heart recipients.

Dated this 27th day of September, 2021.

### 4. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Meeting: August 23, 2021

**MOTION**: Ms. Gilman moved to approve the minutes of August 23, 2021 as presented. Mr. Browne seconded. Ms. Oliff abstained, as she was not present at the 8/23 meeting, and the motion passed 3-0-1.

b. Regular Meeting: September 13, 2021

**MOTION:** Ms. Oliff moved to approve the minutes of September 13, 2021 as presented. Ms. Gilman seconded. Mr. Browne abstained, as he was not present at the 9/13 meeting, and the motion passed 3-0-1.

### 5. Appointments

- a. There were no appointments made at this meeting.
- 6. Discussion/Action Items
  - a. Bower Land Donation Public Hearing

Mr. Papakonstantis said this is the second public hearing on the land donation. **MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to open the public hearing. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

Mr. Papakonstantis opened the hearing for public comment, but there was none.

**MOTION**: Ms. Gilman moved to close the public hearing. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

There will be a third public hearing and a motion to accept the donation at the next meeting on October 4th.

b. Conservation Deed - Mendez Trust

Kristen Murphy, the Town Natural Resources Planner, was present to discuss this issue. Justin Pasay of DTC Lawyers was also present on behalf of the applicant, Brian Griset.

Mr. Dean mentioned that the Conservation Commission has reviewed the deed, and it's in a form to be accepted. Mr. Papakonstantis said this deed would convey 31 acres of land to the town of Exeter.

Attorney Pasay said he can answer the Board's questions, but this deed has already been subject to scrutiny by the Planning Board and Conservation Commission. The Conservation Commission approved it unanimously, and it's a condition of project approval from the Planning Board. It's also received legal approval.

Ms. Gilman said she'd seen this at the Planning Board already. She mentioned that the property is contiguous with the Brickyard Pond ball field.

**MOTION**: Mr. Browne moved to accept the proposed Warranty Deed which would convey approximately 31 acres of land to the town from the Mendez Revocable Realty Trust. Ms. Oliff seconded. Ms. Gilman asked if they should include the tax map number.

**MOTION**: Mr. Browne moved to amend his motion to include tax map number 81-53. Ms. Gilman seconded. All were in favor, and the motion passed 4-0.

#### c. Tree Ordinance First Reading

Ms. Gilman said the Tree Committee, a subcommittee of the Conservation Commission, was formed to maintain Exeter's "Tree City" status. This tree ordinance is part of that effort. This is regarding street trees and those in the public way. Citizens have the right to bring trees that are a hazard to the attention of the tree warden, currently Jay Perkins, and the ordinance sets out the guidelines for the tree to be replaced. There are extensive illustrations of how to plant and take care of a tree, as well as a list of prohibited plants no longer allowed by the State, and what trees are encouraged.

Eileen Flockhart of 7 Jacks Court, a member of the Tree Committee, said we established Exeter's "Tree City" status in 2019, and have maintained that status in the last two years. In the course of the work, we realized Exeter didn't have a tree ordinance, so this was the subject of a lot of work by the Committee and others. This will make what we say about street trees and the trees in our parks mean something, and affirms the value of trees in those spaces.

Kristen Murphy said four different arborists worked on this, including an arborist from Unitil, so they had both perspectives in the room when working on this. Greg Bisson and Jay Perkins have also been there from the start. This ordinance applies to all streets, highways, parks, cemeteries, and public easements. They could talk about eliminating cemeteries from the ordinance, since there are some concerns with the Winter Street Cemetery and trees disturbing headstones. The ordinance sets a threshold level of diameter of trees which require Tree Warden or Tree Committee consultation to cut down. If a resident will commit to caring for and watering a tree on a public right of way, Public Works will come in and plant it. This has the potential to change our streetscape long-term. If a tree is removed without permission, that's identified as an unlawful act, and requires payment of a penalty fee not to exceed \$300 or replanting. The goal is to encourage people to consult the Tree Warden before cutting down trees. The Memorial Tree Foundation has the ability to establish a Memorial Tree Fund, which will be managed by Parks and Rec. The ordinance still requires legal counsel review, but she's looking for feedback from the Board, for example on having volunteers making recommendations to the Tree Warden.

Mr. Papakonstantis said when they passed the mask ordinance last year, the intent was to educate rather than police it, and he thinks that's the case here as well. If the fine were to remain in the ordinance, who would enforce that? Mr. Dean said normally the enforcement agent on the Town Ordinances is the Police Dept, so we should check with legal counsel on whether it should be another group. Ms. Murphy said she thinks it would be enforced similarly to littering.

Mr. Papakonstantis asked about funding. Ms. Murphy said Jay Perkins is looking to have support from an on-staff Arborist, and the Tree Committee would support that goal. There's no line item proposed for the Tree Committee itself.

Mr. Browne asked about the language of "chapter" vs "ordinance." Mr. Dean said the ordinance is codified in chapters, and that's why it reads that way.

Mr. Sharples said recent work at Winter Street Cemetery removed 26 trees, all of which would have been deemed significant by this ordinance, but which were causing damage to the headstones. He'd like the ordinance to exempt cemeteries. They wouldn't remove a tree unless it were posing a hazard to the grave sites.

Mr. Papakonstantis said the second and third readings would be on October 4th and 18th.

#### d. Public Safety Complex Analysis Contract

Mr. Sharples said the voters approved warrant article 13 in 2021, Public Safety Complex Alternative Analysis: To see if the town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of \$100,000, for the purpose of evaluating alternatives for a new Public Safety Complex. This sum to come from general taxation.

This vote was successful, and Mr. Sharples helped the Chiefs work with the Facilities Advisory Committee to issue an RFQ and go through the evaluation process. We received 15 responses to the RFQ, and selected Lavallee Brensinger Architects. The interview committee consisted of himself, the Chiefs, Mark Leighton representing the FAC, and Mr. Dean. The interview committee ranked the responses according to set criteria and chose 5 of the 15 firms. Kris Weeks, the Chair of the FAC, sat in on the interviews in place of Mark Leighton, along with Paul Vlasich, the Town Engineer and the other members of the interview panel. They selected Lavallee Brensinger to put together a cost proposal. Mr. Sharples negotiated with Rob Robicsek of LBA, who initially proposed a fee of \$94,000 plus up to \$2,000 for reimbursable. After discussion, they agreed to keep the same scope of work for \$78,800 plus reimbursables up to \$1,000 for a total cost of \$79,800. The company's willingness to negotiate underscores their willingness to be a partner to the town. The contract has been reviewed by legal counsel and both Chiefs. He recommends the Select Board approve the Town Manager to sign the documents. He put up to \$100,000 in the motion, which will allow them to engage LBA for additional services if the need arises.

Mr. Browne asked about the difference between RFQs and RFPs. Mr. Sharples said he's never done a controlled comparison. The RFQ process is good if you'd like to use Federal Funding down the road, because they often require it. Otherwise both processes have their place.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved that the Town Manager is authorized to execute any documents and agreements and take any and all such actions on behalf of the Town, to complete the Public Safety Complex Alternatives Analysis project in accordance with Town Warrant Article 13 approved on March 10, 2021. This authorization includes executing the attached contract with Lavallee Brensinger Architects PLLC for a total price not-to-exceed \$79,800 and up to \$20,200 for any additional work (ie Geotech, Hazardous Materials survey, etc) up to a total not-to-exceed

\$100,000 to complete the project as approved by the voters. Ms. Gilman seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

e. Construction Administration Contract - Salem Street Utility Project

Mr. Papakonstantis said the town voted in March 2021 to approve funding for construction administration and inspection for the Salem Street Area Improvement Project for a total of \$5,100,000. Since that article passed, Hoyle Tanner and Associates were chosen as the design engineers for this project. Attached is a contract for services to facilitate this project at a cost of \$568,500, split between the General Fund (\$100,000), Water Fund (\$288,500), and Sewer Fund (\$188,000). The DPW recommends approving the contract.

Mr. Dean said that this contract is about 11% of the total project cost of \$5.1M, which is in line with what you'd expect.

**MOTION**: Mr. Browne moved to approve the contract for Construction Administration and Resident Project Representative Services to facilitate the Salem Street Area Utility Improvement Project in the amount of \$568,500 and to authorize the Town Manager to sign said contract amendment. Ms. Oliff seconded. Ms. Gilman said the contract includes facilitating public meetings. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

# f. FY22 Preliminary Budget

Mr. Dean said they're anticipating \$7,236,223 in revenue for FY22. The current use tax in FY21 is \$147,770, but that's reduced to \$7,500 in FY22; we can't forecast that revenue source, so we have to be conservative. Another drop is in income from departments, dropping from \$1,215,000 in FY21 to \$1M in FY22 because we're anticipating a Health Trust refund and Primex refunds in 2021.

The Department budgets have been put together. There are three main budgets: General Fund, Water Fund, and Sewer Fund. The General Fund increase YOY is 3.39%, but that's a number compared to the March 2021 vote which included a Police Contract. The FY22 budget is \$20,566,002, an increase of \$648,461, or 3.26%, over the FY21 approved adjusted budget of \$19,917,541. The FY22 CIP is an additional \$328,135. The Town has an unassigned fund balance of \$6.1M, so there's a recommendation to use \$269,770 of that towards additional warrant articles. General Government is up 14.33% over FY21, mostly in HR, because they are recommending making a part-time position full-time. The IT budget is up considerably, by \$98,283, or 33.72%, partly due to a recommended server purchase at \$53,000.

Ms. Gilman asked about Human Services. Why is the anticipation that it will go down? Mr. Dean said they adjusted the direct relief budget down. Other aspects will stay the same or increase slightly. Ms. Gilman said she expects that they will have more people needing aid this year.

Mr. Papakonstantis said he knows the IT increase looks high, but it's probably about time. It's amazing how they've done so much with so little.

Mr. Dean said a number of accounts are going back to pre-Covid levels, such as Education and Training budgets, or Paving at \$100,000, which was cut last year. The last few years of budgets have been very bare bones. There was only a 1.64% increase

YOY in the Covid year. 3.39% isn't a bad starting position. For the Health Insurance reserve, we're budgeting a 7.5% increase, but once we get the rating that may change. Last year we had 8.1% budgeted and it came in at 2.5%.

Town Moderator and Elections are up; there are three elections in FY22. Finance is up 5.78% due to the MUNIS software agreement and restoring pre-Covid levels of education and training. The Treasurer budget is level-funded. Tax Collection is a decrease of 6.19%, due partly to a discontinuance of the lock box service. In Assessing, there's a slight increase. We still have an assessing contract with MRI, which is under review. There's a small increase in postage of \$800, and a reduction in the software line of \$1,385.

The Planning Department budget is up by 11.1%. We're looking to turn a part time Natural Resources Planner into full-time. This position would be able to work with the Energy Committee and the Sustainability Committee. Currently the Town Planner is doing that work, and it's a stretch for him. Mr. Papakonstantis said when the Sustainability Committee was formed, the request was for a full-time position, and the Select Board recommended that the Town Planner take that role, but that was meant to be temporary. There's an existing staff member who's expressed willingness to move to full time, and is familiar with the Department and the Sustainability Committee. Mr. Dean said it's an area where they've had a lot of requests for resources but haven't been able to match that momentum. Mr. Browne asked if there were cost offsets to making this position full time, and Mr. Dean said he wasn't aware of any. Mr. Papakonstantis said this person would be in a good place to apply for additional grants, so there may be a return.

Economic Development is up 3.79%; the main increase is the Director looking to complete a course to become a Certified Economic Developer at a cost of \$3,600. To offset, Consulting Services have been reduced by \$1,800, from \$3,000 to \$1,200. Inspections and Code is up 2.84%, an increase of \$7,704 over FY21. The Code Enforcement Officer now has a smartphone. The part-time Electrical Inspector Position has been vacant due to a retirement, and the Code Enforcement Officer has been performing those duties. Ms. Gilman asked if they'd spoken with other communities that have a part-time Inspector. Mr. Dean said Doug Eastman has been trying to feel out communities that have part-time positions, but some just use the State to do electrical inspections.

The Land Use Boards are mostly level-funded. The costs there are just for recording secretaries and public notices of meetings.

The Police budget is 2.28% increase over FY21. There's a \$4,000 Education/Training increase, with an emphasis on mental health training for Officers and Dispatchers.

The Fire/Emergency Management Dept has a 1.1% increase over FY21. This will include a request for two additional Fire Fighters that were recommended by the CPSM study. They also reduced a part-time clerical position, with a savings of \$17,467. The Fire Dept Expense budget has increased by \$10,172, or 3.3%.

Mr. Browne asked about the clerical position. Chief Wilking said asking for two new hires is a heavy lift, so we did everything we could to look at what was absolutely needed. The newly hired full-time Clerical person has implemented efficiencies that have made a part-time person unnecessary this year. The budget request, although 1.1% higher than last year, is \$25,000 lower than pre-Covid levels. There will be an upcoming retirement that will affect the budget in the future.

Mr. Dean said Public Safety, Shared Services, and Communication Dispatch is an increase of 1.49% over FY21, due to wage and benefits changes. Expenses are increased \$150.

The Health budget is 1 FTE, James Murray, who has done more than 1 FTE of work during Covid. That account is up 3.15%. Education and Training has increased.

In Public Works, Administration and Engineering is up 3.53%, which includes the restoration of \$3,000 for Professional Development. Highway Paving is seeing an increase of \$137,433, street marking an increase of \$10,000, and vehicle maintenance an increase of \$10,000 due to inflation. Snow Removal is a 0.65% increase. The winters have not been bad in recent years, so the Snow and Ice Deficit fund has a balance of \$103,150, and it's easier to level fund it. Solid Waste has a decrease of \$63,830, or 4.6%, most of which is due to the GZA contracts for the Powder Mill and Cross Road analysis being completed in October, as well as the extra value associated with the recyclables market. The Solid Waste contract ends in May 2022, and we are in the process of renegotiating that contract, so there may be an increase. Streetlights have been level-funded since 2019, when we converted the street lights to LEDs.

Ms. Gilman asked why there are random ones that weren't changed to LEDs, such as one at the corner of High Street and Portsmouth Ave. Mr. Dean said if people see those, let us know.

The Stormwater Budget has increased by 71%, to \$92,360, to address the longterm control plan for nitrogen. We have to be compliant with the EPA and MS4. Paul Vlasich spoke to the Select Board a few meetings ago about some of the nitrogen reduction strategies, which include rebuilding seven faulty catch basins at a cost of \$28,000.

The Maintenance General Budget has an increase of 3.48%, partly due to Education/Training and Wage and Benefit changes.

Ms. Gilman said some of the HDC signs that designate the neighborhoods are faded or blank, which is a long-standing maintenance issue. Can this be addressed? Mr. Dean said this is the Board's budget, so if there are things that should be added they can have a conversation about it.

Town Buildings Utilities accounts are up \$730, a 0.25% increase. For the Maintenance Projects budget, there's the typical \$100,000 request that's made every year. Some of the proposed projects are roof repair at the Public Safety Complex, attic insulation at the Town Hall, replacement of doors at the Public Works Complex, and work on the gazebo downtown. Maintenance Garage has an increase of \$4,808, or 1.76%. There's an increase of \$900 in the Mechanics' tools account.

Welfare and Human Services has a decrease of \$1,687, or 0.94%, from FY21. There's an increase in non-direct relief expenses of \$40 and decrease in direct relief of \$465. The electricity line is reduced by \$1,500. Human Service Agencies funding is down by \$1,615, or 1.5%, after a review of the agency requests by the Human Services Funding Committee.

Parks and Rec has an increase of 7.34%. In Recreation Wages and Benefits, they had a personnel change when the Assistant Parks and Rec Director moved to HR/Assistant Town Manager. There's a Parks increase of \$11,345, or 5.09%; there was a restructuring to have a Parks Foreman and a full-time Laborer. There's a request to increase Parks equipment to \$5,000 to buy an enclosed trailer, and there have been corresponding decreases in other line items. Total Parks expenses are \$90,450, a decrease of \$765 from FY21. Other Culture and Recreation, such as Christmas Lights, the Holiday Parade, Summer Concerts, the Brass Band, etc, remains the same as last year.

The Library budget is set by the Library Trustees, and their budget has increased by \$42,884, an increase of 3.97%. Public Services are level-funded, which includes utilities, books, and operating expenses.

In Debt Service and Capital, there's a decrease of \$131,670 or 7.42%. Principal payments in FY22 include the first year of the Salem Street Utilities Bond, which is offset by the retirement of the Great Dam study. Net principal has increased by \$21,196 or 2.1%. Debt Service interest has decreased 2.6% because of maturing debt. The Debt Service budget includes a first year interest payment on the Salem Street project of \$39,148 so that's been added to the list. For Vehicles, Replacement/Leases requests are down by \$142,957. FY21 was the last payment on Ladder 1 and a DPW dump truck. There's a request for \$110,000 to replace two Police Cruisers. Other vehicles are proposed warrant articles, with some to come from fund balance. Benefits and taxes, increase of \$192,268; that's where the Health Insurance reserve is being held, and will be redistributed once the Health Trust sets its rates.

Mr. Papakonstantis said regarding the percent increase, the real comparison is FY22 to FY20, because last year's budget was unique. He would like Mr. Dean to show the breakdown between FY20 and FY22, so that the increases won't seem so drastic.

Mr. Dean said there are three bond articles for the General Fund. One is the 10 Hampton Road property purchase which was discussed at a previous meeting, at \$1,150,000. There's a request for Pickpocket Dam modification at \$300,000; we've received two grants, a \$40,000 Coastal Resiliency grant and a \$75,000 State Revolving Fund grant. The third is the Westside Drive area reconstruction design funds; the Public Works Dept held a meeting with the neighborhood. They've spent the \$100,000 and they're looking to get to the next step in design. For individual articles, the three collective bargaining agreements and several warrant articles. lease purchases for SCBA equipment for the Fire Department, \$59,064, and Police Body Cameras, which we're seeking outside funding for. Raynes Barn improvements, net cost to the town \$100,000, he would include this as part of the \$269,770 to be funded from fund balance. Replacing a one ton truck with a dump-body truck, also recommended to be funded by fund balance. The Intersection Improvements plan has been moved up a year; it was initially in FY23, but given the things they've been talking about, Jennifer Perry of the DPW agreed that it was prudent to move it up. Public Works Facilities Garage for \$50,000, reduced from \$75,000.

Ms. Gilman asked about Police Body Cameras. In the last State budget, they passed an allocation for body-worn cameras for distribution to towns, which might bring this number down. Mr. Dean said Chief Poulin was looking at multiple funding sources for this proposal.

The Parks Improvement Fund was reduced from \$150,000 to \$50,000. With the Hampton Road purchase coming forward, it was a good year to cut this. That would be funded via fund balance. There's a Car 3 replacement in the FD, a 2010 vehicle they're looking to replace, also funded by fund balance. A Facilities Condition Assessment has been put forward by the Facilities Committee. They're replacing two Jeep Patriots in Public Works. There's a Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Plan for the Planning Department. Two ARPA funded projects are in the CIP, at a cost of \$1.6M: Great Bay total nitrogen permit work and the Winter Street Stormwater Mitigation.

For deferrals, they're deferring the replacement of Sedan 24 in Public Works for \$24,000; the replacement of a sidewalk tractor for \$162,400; and a truck replacement in Public Works at \$51,252. Mr. Dean also recommended deferring the replacement of Engine 5, a 20 year old engine, although the Fire Department aims to replace these vehicles every 20 years. The Town Offices Geotechnical Evaluation and the Fire Inspector vehicle replacement were moved to FY23.

The FY22 preliminary budget is \$20,566,002, plus General Fund warrant articles at \$328,135. There were initially over \$600,000 in warrant articles, but we've taken about half to be funded through fund balance. The total budget plus warrant articles would be \$20,894,137. Total FY21 appropriations were \$20,167,541; FY22 is \$726,596 more, which is a 3.6% increase. The proposed tax impact is 39 cents per \$1,000.

The Water Fund is at \$4,253,495, an increase of \$199,311 or 4.92% over FY21. The Sewer Fund is a 6.19% increase, and the two funds together are a 5.72% increase. The Administration budget in Water is up 5.76%, or \$23,595 over FY21. There's an increase in the Consulting line of \$5,000 to create a lead service line replacement plan. Professional development opportunities have been restored to a pre-Covid level of \$3,000. Water Billing is at \$192,101, a 12.2% increase. There's an increase in audit fees and a \$10,501 increase in the Software Agreement line for Munis and Munilink. There's an increase of \$550 in travel reimbursement for Munis to come do training here. The Distribution budget is a 2.5% increase. The FD got out of the fire alarm monitoring business, so Water and Sewer are paying for their own monitoring for the pump stations. There's an increase in GIS software and meter replacements. Water Treatment is up 2.7%, mostly for increased testing to comply with the Safe Drinking Water Act. Water treatment chemicals have been increased by \$4,000. Water Debt Service is up 4.74% or \$59,835, for the Salem Street Utilities project and the second payment on the Groundwater/Surfacewater Assessment Program. In Capital Outlay, there's an increase of \$53,970, or 10.47%. This is where you see the vehicle and equipment requests, a Ford Escape Hybrid, a Half-ton Crew Cab Hybrid, and a <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> Ton Crew Cab, for \$93,970. The BRC will vet those requests along with the General Fund. The Water budget is carrying \$460,000 for water system capital outlay; we're looking at having Suez do work on the clarifiers and filters at the Surface Water Treatment Plant, at a cost of \$335,412. Right now they do painting and maintenance on the water tanks. Typically you pay more

in the first few years and it drops off after that. There are additional requests for a rehab of the Lary Lane and Stadium Wells.

The Sewer Fund has a 6.19% increase. Admin is up \$993. There's a reduction in Consulting Services of \$20,000. There's an increase in Legal Expense line to deal with permit issues. Some professional development is going back to pre-Covid levels. Sewer Billing is split 50/50 with Water Billing, and the increases are the same as in that budget. Collection is up 1.65% or \$12,115. There are fire alarm communication costs and a \$1500 increase in GIS software. Sewer Treatment is up 7.43%, or \$98,792. The largest items are \$59,000 for additional lab testing and \$22,500 in equipment maintenance. That's something flagged for potential ARPA funding. Sewer Debt service is up 6.33% due to lagoon sludge removal and the sewer portion of the Salem Street Utilities project. What's not in here is the siphons project, because it's not completed. Sewer Capital is up 1.92%, which includes some vehicle requests. The bond issues for the Sewer Fund are for Westside Drive, the Court Street Design Project at \$400,000, the sewer capacity rehabilitation design phase at \$200,000, and the Webster Avenue Pump Station project. Right now we're reconsidering the cost estimates of the Webster Ave project, so it may not be ready for the warrant.

The Revolving Funds, CATV, EMS, and Recreation, are non-appropriated funds. With the EMS Revolving Fund, we're looking to replace an ambulance.

Our budget represents 24% of the tax rate, only about <sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> of the total tax bill. We try to give a lot of value for that cost.

Mr. Papakonstantis discussed the timeline of the budget process. He said it was staggering to see how much wasn't in the budget last year; when comparing 2020 and 2022, it's not as staggering.

### 7. Regular Business

a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions

Mr. Dean said he's asking the Select Board to sign off on deed waivers for 40 or so properties. The reason for waiving the deed is because the properties represent an undesirable obligation or liability risk per RSA 80:76 II(a). He still wants to follow up on a group of properties, which he will bring back to the Board at a later time. Mr. Papakonstantis asked if Mr. Dean were comfortable with a four-person Board signing off on them, and Mr. Dean said yes. They each have to be read individually.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 104/79/602 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 64/105/30 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/03 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 104/79/139 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/239 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 104/79/229 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 87/14/21B because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 110/2/80 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 104/79/701 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 87/08/A16 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/82 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/228 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 104/79/524 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/165 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 103/13/37 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Ms. Gilman moved to waive the tax deeding on 95/64/332 because in its judgement acceptance and ownership of the real estate would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risk. Mr. Browne seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 72/60/2 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable liability risks per RSA 80:76 II(a). Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/421 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 64/105/82 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/222 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 103/15/11 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/308 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Gilman seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 103/13/26 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 87/14/1A on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/513 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/175 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/230 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 111/5/1 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/15 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/182 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/180 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 103/15/3 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/125 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/214 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/327 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/317 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/144 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/382 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/69 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 103/11 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 103/15/15 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 95/64/41 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to execute the deed waiver on 104/79/523 on the grounds that it would subject the municipality to undesirable obligations or liability risks. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed 4-0.

- b. Permits & Approvals
  - i. There were no permits or approvals considered at this meeting.
- c. Town Manager's Report
  - i. He met last week with Kate Miller, who is the Special Counsel for Cable TV matters, and Andy Swanson regarding the cable TV contract. There are some new laws regarding cable TV. He'd like to bring her in to a future meeting.
  - ii. We've been working with a few blind residents to consider implementing the OmniBallot system. We want to make sure the company can deliver what they're promising.
  - iii. The next Budget meeting is Wednesday.
- d. Select Board Committee Reports

- i. Mr. Browne had no report.
- ii. Ms. Gilman attended the HDC meeting, where they tabled an application for replacement windows because the choice of replacement was something that's not recommended. The Conservation Commission considered the Menedez/Griset Trust donation. The Skywatch this week has been postponed due to cloudy weather, until Oct 13. The Heritage Commission met to discuss a date for demolition review for 7 Wadleigh Street, which has been set for Oct 6. There was discussion of the Park Street neighborhood district, and they will make another proposal to the neighborhood. She has been named as an alternate to the Community Power Coalition of NH.
- iii. Ms. Oliff said that at the Swasey Park Trustees meeting, the primary discussion was tree work. There was a presentation given by Darius Thompson on how the bidding process would be managed. There was also an irrigation update.
- iv. Mr. Papakonstantis attended the River Advisory meeting, which was only 15 minutes. Paul Vlasich gave an update on Pickpocket Dam. That committee will meet again in November. He met with Ms. Oliff regarding the goal setting for Committees and Boards, and will have it ready by the October 18th Select Board meeting.
- e. Correspondence
  - i. A notice about Rail Safety week.
  - ii. A thank-you note from the town for the donation of a granite watering trough.
  - iii. A notice of Administration of Transportation laws and a list of the Public Hearing schedule through 2032.
  - iv. Ms. Gilman said there's a Redistricting Committee at the State level, and they will meet with every County. Rockingham County's meeting will be October 5th at the County Courthouse, which we should post publicly.
- 8. Review Board Calendar
  - a. The next meetings will be October 4th and 18th.
- 9. Non-Public Session
  - a. There was no non-public session at this meeting.

10. Adjournment

**MOTION:** Mr. Browne moved to adjourn. Ms. Oliff seconded. All were in favor and the meeting adjourned at 9:23 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Joanna Bartell Recording Secretary